
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 1, 2022 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 
I. CALL TO ORDER.
II. INVOCATION.
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
IV. WELCOME.
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.
VI. RECOGNITION OF NEW/PROMOTED EMPLOYEES:

1. Todd Bess, Public Works Superintendent
2. Justin Blanton, Parks & Recreation Programmer
3. James Fedash, Utility/Pump Maintenance Mechanic
4. Walt Gaskins, Electrician/Instrumentation Technician
5. Paulina Gomez – Police Officer
6. Quan Hamilton – Police Officer
7. Dustin Howard, Equipment Operator
8. Dawson Majette, Police Officer
9. Jordan Shirley, Parks & Recreation Program Supervisor

10. Toby Sykes, Utility/Pump Maintenance Mechanic
11. Patricia White, Police Officer/School Resource Officer

VII. PROCLAMATIONS:
1. Winterville 10U All Stars.
2. Winterville Watermelon Festival.

VIII. PRESENTATIONS:
1. Traffic Garden Update.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council



meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public 
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room. 

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 June 6, 2022 Budget Public Hearing Minutes; and
 June 13, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.

2. Watermelon Festival Permissions.
a. Parade Permit Fee Waiver.
b. Traffic and Parking.
c. Park Hours.
d. Signs and Banners.
e. Bathroom Use.

3. Budget Amendment 2022-2023-1.
XI. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Cemetery Regulations and Update.
2. Ange Street Sidewalk Project Update.
3. Rivers & Associates - 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Contract Amendment #4.
4. Rivers & Associates - 2020 Pump Rehabilitation Project Amendment #2.

XII. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Modification to the Design Standards Manual – Allow modifications to be approved at the

administrative level.
2. Vehicle Lease Resolution - Winterville Police Department.

XIII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS.
XIV. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS.
XV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS.
XVI. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Summer Market Series: National Night Out and Back to School Splash: Tuesday, August 2,
2022; 4:00 pm – 7:00 pm – Market on the Square.

2. ElectriCities Conference: Sunday, August 7th – Thursday, August 11th – Cherokee, NC.
3. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, August 15, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall

Assembly Room.
4. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, August 16, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly

Room.
5. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, August 16, 2022 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center.
6. Watermelon Festival: Thursday, August 25, 2022 through Sunday, August 28, 2022 –

Winterville Recreation Park.
7. Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, August 25, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall

Executive Conference Room.
8. Labor Day Holiday: Monday September 5, 2022 - Town Offices Closed.
9. Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, September 12, 2022 @ 7:00 pm.

2 of 65



XVII. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVIII. CLOSED SESSION:
NCGS § 143-318.11 (a) (5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or
negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body
in negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for
the acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the
amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or
proposed employment contract. (Acquisition of Real Property.)

XIX. ADJOURN.
SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

3 of 65



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
WINTERVILLE WATERMELON FESTIVAL 

 
WHEREAS, the first Winterville Watermelon festival was held in 1986 by the Winterville 

Jaycees at the A.G. Cox School (where the middle school building presently stands) and at its 
conception was the only Watermelon Festival held in the State of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the festival has moved throughout the Town of Winterville since its 
conception to the present location at the Winterville Recreation Park, where it has called home 
for the past 11 years; and 

WHEREAS, from the first committee to the group became known as the Winterville 
Watermelon Festival Committee, with numerous members who serve on the committee; and 

WHEREAS, the dedication and sacrifices made by the Winterville Watermelon Festival 
Committee has placed Winterville, North Carolina on the map as a community that is truly “a 

Slice of the Good Life”, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor and the Town 
Council of the Town of Winterville, recognize the contribution the Watermelon Festival 
Committee has made to the Town of Winterville and are proud to be partners of this great 
festival which is recognized throughout the nation and state of North Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 1st day of August 2022. 

 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4 of 65



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

July 22, 2022  

Winterville, NC 

MEDIA CONTACT: 

Town of Winterville:  Evan Johnston, evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com, (252) 756-1487 

BikeWalk NC: Trish Farnham, programs@bikewalknc.org, (910) 233-2757 

Town of Winterville and BikeWalk NC Invite Feedback on a Bicyclist and Pedestrian 

Safety Skills Educational “Traffic Garden” Design 
The design will be established in the unstriped portion of Winterville’s Hillcrest Park and will be the first of its kind in 

eastern NC. 

July 22, 2022— The Town of Winterville is inviting public input on the design of its bicyclist and pedestrian safety 

skills “Traffic Garden” at Hillcrest Park. Working in partnership with BikeWalk NC, AARP, Pitt County 

Planning/Parks and Recreation, ECU Health and other community groups, the Hillcrest Park Traffic Garden will 

establish a permanent resource for bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages to learn about road safety in a protected 

environment.   While traffic gardens are increasingly popular in other parts of the country, the Hillcrest Park Traffic 

Garden will be the first of its kind in eastern North Carolina. 

Bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and experience levels are invited to provide feedback on design options in one of 

2 ways: 

● Through an online survey available here through August 7, 2022.

● In-person feedback at BikeWalk NC’s tent at the Town of Winterville’s Summer Splash event on Tuesday,

August 2, 2022.

The Hillcrest Park Traffic Garden will be established using AARP Community Challenge grant dollars secured by 

BikeWalk NC and unanimously supported by the Town of Winterville’s Town Council at its June meeting.  It will 

repurpose the unstriped portion of Winterville’s Hillcrest Park parking lot. 

The Town of Winterville’s Mayor Ricky Hines noted, “It brings me joy to know our community will be exposed to the 

safety aspects of riding bikes.”   

 BikeWalkNC’s Director, Terry Lansdell celebrates the collaboration with the Town of Winterville. 

 “The Traffic Garden at Hillcrest Park will be among the first of its kind in our state.  It serves as a lasting example of a 

community coming together and reflecting its commitment to the safety of all road users. We are honored to partner 

with the Town of Winterville and others in the Greenville area on this visionary effort.” 

The Hillcrest Park Traffic Garden is slated to be completed this fall.  The Town of Winterville and BikeWalk NC will 

formally dedicate the Traffic Garden on Saturday, October 29 at 2:15  as part of BikeWalk NC’s 11th annual NC 

BikeWalk Transportation Summit, to be held in Greenville on October 27-29, 2022 at the East Carolina Heart Institute. 

For more information about the Summit, please visit www.bikewalknc.org 

GRANT
EE 

LOGO

5 of 65

mailto:evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com
mailto:programs@bikewalknc.org
https://forms.gle/haj58oKi7vuQxpNEA
https://www.aarp.org/livable-communities/community-challenge/info-2022/2022-grantees.html
https://bikewalknc.wildapricot.org/resources/EmailTemplates/2022%20NC%20BikeWalk%20Transportation%20Summit%20Registration%20is%20Officially%20Open!/index_preview.html
https://bikewalknc.wildapricot.org/resources/EmailTemplates/2022%20NC%20BikeWalk%20Transportation%20Summit%20Registration%20is%20Officially%20Open!/index_preview.html
http://www.bikewalknc.org/


 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 
Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 
Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 
Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/20/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp – 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 June 6, 2022 Budget Public Hearing Minutes; and 
 June 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 
 

6 of 65



 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 6, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Public Hearing Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in 
the Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Ten Mark Smith presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor (absent) 
Mark C. Smith, Mayor Pro Tem 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Smith led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Smith welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
 
Approval of Bid for Purchase of Electric Infrastructure Components (Transformers). 
 
Electric Director Sutton noted that the Town advertised a Solicitation for Proposals in the Daily 
Reflector on May 20, 2022. The Solicitation specified the requested materials, 50 kVA and 75 kVA 
underground pad mount transformers, and listed a formal bid opening date of Tuesday, May 31, 2022 

7 of 65



 

Page 2 of 6 

at 2:00 pm at the Winterville Town Hall. Unfortunately, only one bid packet arrived by the designated 
time and the bid opening was cancelled. 
 
Immediately after the cancellation, Staff contacted all vendors who had previously shown interest in the 
bid submittal process. This was done to determine the vendor’s interest in submitting a bid. Multiple 
vendors stated an inability to provide a bid due to unknown delivery dates and associated prices, 
although some felt they could submit a bid if given additional time.  In hopes of obtaining the needed 
bids, the Town decided to extend the bid opening date an additional 72 hours to Friday, June 3, 2022 at 
2:00 pm. All vendors who expressed interest in the bid process were notified of the time extension on 
May 31, 2022. 
 
Three submittals were received prior to the extended bid opening date and a bid opening was held on 
June 3, 2022 at 2:00 pm. Present were representatives of the Town’s Finance and Electric 
Departments. WESCO submitted a bid of $627,625.00 with a 104-week delivery period. Stuart C. Irby 
submitted a bid of $838,695.00 but with a lead time of 60-66 weeks. The third vendor, Border States 
Electric submitted a No-Quote. 
 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
purchase of the requested transformers from Stuart C Irby at a price reflective of their submitted 
bid and per conditions noted in Section 7.5 of the Town’s Purchasing Manual. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Town Manager Parker presented the following Recommended Budget: 
 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Recommended Budget. 
 

8 of 65



 

Page 3 of 6 

 
 

9 of 65



 

Page 4 of 6 

 
 

10 of 65



 

Page 5 of 6 

 
 

11 of 65



 

Page 6 of 6 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of 
the recommended budget. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the recommended budget. 
No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any further discussion or any more questions. 
 
A vote on the budget will take place at the June 13, 2022 Regular Council meeting. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at .7:11 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 1st  day of August 2022. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

12 of 65



 

Page 1 of 26 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 13, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Tem Mark C. Smith presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor (absent) 
Mark C. Smith, Mayor Pro Tem 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman (absent) 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moye gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Smith led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Smith welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker requested an amendment to the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey the Proclamation(s). 

1. Flag Day. 
2. Juneteenth Day. 
3. Boys and Girls Club Week. 
4. Park and Recreation Month. 
5. Honoring Day’Ron Sharpe. 

13 of 65



 

Page 2 of 26 

PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Bicyclist and Pedestrian Safety Skills Educational Traffic Garden at Hillcrest Park: 
Trish Farnham, Ellen Walston, and Steven Hardy-Braz spoke on the proposed Traffic Garden to be 
located at the empty space of the parking lot in Hillcrest Park. Ms. Farnham said this would be a legacy 
project and the information below: 
 

 

14 of 65



 

Page 3 of 26 

 

 
 

15 of 65



 

Page 4 of 26 

 
 

16 of 65



 

Page 5 of 26 

 
 

17 of 65



 

Page 6 of 26 

 
 

18 of 65



 

Page 7 of 26 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Bicyclist 
and Pedestrian Safety Skills Educational Traffic Garden at Hillcrest Park. Motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: McLawhorn Tract – Rezoning Request (Parcel 16207): Planning Director Jones 
gave the following presentation: 
 

 

19 of 65



 

Page 8 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

20 of 65



 

Page 9 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

21 of 65



 

Page 10 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

22 of 65



 

Page 11 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

23 of 65



 

Page 12 of 26 

 
Councilman Moore asked how R-6 is compatible in area of R-10. Planning Director Jones said the 
restricted access to the parcel makes it viable. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of 
the rezoning request. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the rezoning request. 
 
John Kieffer of 5213 Reedy Branch Road said the rezoning would cause issues of artificial light, 
drainage, and take away green space/trees. He has lived there 30 years. Magnolia Ridge took away 
the wildlife. 
 
Sandy Edmondson of 5203 Reedy Branch Road and Kieffer’s neighbor said it will be close and dense 
causing problems with the property. She wants bigger lots sizes. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is 
Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to deny the McLawhorn 
Tract (Parcel 16207) Rezoning Request. (Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro Tem Smith reminded speakers of the Public Comment Policy. 
 
1. Preston Coghill spoke on an Evening of Gospel. He is looking for support and sponsorship of the 

September event. 
 
2. Rebecca Caveness and Heather Jackson of the Watermelon Festival spoke on a Beer Garden to 

bring in additional funds for the Festival. Heather Jackson asked Council to allow them to host the 
Beer Garden. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem asked what are your plans? Ms. Caveness said it will be limited and controlled in 
accordance with law. Mayor Pro Tem asked what is the location and how is it designated? Ms. 
Caveness said it would stay within the area of the concert. Councilman Moore asked who would be 
responsible? Ms. Caveness said Winterville Insurance will be providing a rider for the Beer Garden. 
 
Councilman Moye asked who would check identifications? Ms. Caveness Rebecca said the bars and 
servers will be responsible. Councilman Moye asked if you have ever assisted with a situation like this? 
Chief Willhite said yes and there will be numerous Officers to enforce. He noted that without the Beer 
Garden, patrons utilize other ways. Councilman Moore said he is against the concept. Councilman Rice 
said he has been to functions that have similar areas. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Rice and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve a Beer Garden 
at the 2022 Watermelon Festival on Saturday, August 27, 2022 during the Watermelon Jam 
Concerts from 5:00 pm – 10:00 pm. Motion carried, 3-1, Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
3. John Henderson and James Jones of Mt. Shiloh Missionary Baptist Church have started garden for 

the food bank. Irrigation is a long way from garden and any assistance would be appreciated. 
  

24 of 65



 

Page 13 of 26 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
❖ May 9, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes; and, 
❖ May 10, 2022 Stormwater Workshop Minutes; and, 
❖ May 24, 2022 Budget Work Session #1. 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the consent 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
1. Budget Amendment: 2021-2022-8. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Bowers explained the budget amendment. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve Budget 
Amendment: 2021-2022-8. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
2. Cemetery Update. 
 
Town Manager Parker asked Council about changes to existing regulations that need to be made. 
 
Council requested to bring back at August meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. 2022-2023 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. 
 
Town Manager Parker presented the following Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2022 – 2023: 

25 of 65



 

Page 14 of 26 

 
 

26 of 65



 

Page 15 of 26 

 

27 of 65



 

Page 16 of 26 

 
 

28 of 65



 

Page 17 of 26 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or any questions. Hearing none what is the Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
2. Wintergreen Commons Preliminary Plat: Planning Director Jones gave the following 
presentation: 
 

29 of 65



 

Page 18 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

30 of 65



 

Page 19 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

31 of 65



 

Page 20 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

32 of 65



 

Page 21 of 26 

 
 

 
 

 

33 of 65



 

Page 22 of 26 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith noted that this is a massive sports complex for the Town. Mayor Pro Tem Smith 
asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman More and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Wintergreen Commons Preliminary Plat. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
3. Planning and Zoning Board Appointments: Planning Director Jones provided the following 
information: 
 
The following Planning and Zoning Board Members have terms that will expire on June 30, 2022: 

• Peggy Cliborne 
• Darlene Gardner 
• Douglas Kilian 
• Gregory Monroe 
• Michael Weldin 

 
All members have expressed their desire to be reappointed to the Planning and Zoning Board. Also, 
Mr. Rondy Fleming has resigned from the Board. Staff requests that the current alternate member, 
Brandy Daniels, be appointed to fill Mr. Fleming’s regular member seat. In conjunction, Staff requests 
that Council appoint one of the following applicants on file to fill the vacant alternate seat (listed in 
order of receipt): 

• Dr. Glenn E. Johnson (P & Z - 1st choice) 
• Anthony Bell (P & Z - 1st choice) 
• Morris Luton (P & Z - 2nd choice) 
• Domini Cunningham (P & Z - 1st choice) 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman to approve the requested 
reappointments and Morris Luton as a new alternate member to the Planning and Zoning Board. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0.  
 
  

34 of 65



 

Page 23 of 26 

4. Recreation Advisory Board Appointments: Parks and Recreation Director Johnston provided the 
following information: 
 
The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) is made up of seven (7) Resident members, two (2) Non-
Resident (ETJ) members, and one (1) Alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident. 
The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) has three (3) members whose term expiration is June 30, 2022 
and have requested to be appointed to an additional term. Following is list of said members and their 
membership type: Kirby Bryson (Resident), Carolyn Wanczyk (Resident), and Randy Bowers 
(Resident). 
 
Staff recommends that all current members, as listed above, be appointed to an additional two (2) year 
term on the Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
Staff would like to note that there are applications on file in which applicant indicated interest in 
Recreation Advisory Board: 

• Katrina Jones - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number two (2) priority. 
• Melanie Miller - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number one (1) priority. 
• Stephanie Ham - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number one (1) priority. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
requested reappointments to the Recreation Advisory Board. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
5. Wooten Company – Recreation Maintenance Shop Task Order 36. 
 
Town Manager Parker explained that the Town of Winterville currently has an Engineering Services 
Agreement with the Wooten Company. Task Order Number 36 would be an addition to Engineering 
Services Agreement. The Task Order includes professional services for design, bid, and construction of 
a new Parks and Recreation Department maintenance shop. If approved, the Wooten Company would 
act as our authorized agent from start to finish of the project. The fees associated with the Task Order 
are $32,500 and would not be exceeded without written consent of the Town. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve Wooten 
Company Recreation Maintenance Shop Task Order 36. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
6. Wooten Company – General Consulting Services Task Order 37. 
 
Town Manager Parker explained the General Services Contract for The Wooten Company. This is 
Task order 37 and is for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. The value of the contract is $35,000. This is an 
increase of $10,000 over last year. This is the result of the increased growth, and demand for these 
services for The Wooten Company to assist the Town with the multitude of projects we have 
underway. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Wooten 
Company General Consulting Services Task Order 37. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
  

35 of 65



 

Page 24 of 26 

7. Set Date for August Regular Council Meeting. 
 
The August Regular Council meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 8, 2022 and a majority of the 
Council will be out of Town at the 2022 ElectriCities Conference. Council will need to decide when they 
would desire to meet in August. Staff recommends the meeting date be set for Monday, August 1, 2022 
since there will not be a July meeting and there are conflicts with Advisory Board meetings later in 
August. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the August 
Regular Council meeting be set for Monday, August 1, 2022. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
8. 2022-2023 SRO contract with Pitt County Schools. 
 
Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into a contract to supply a School 
Resource Officer (SRO) in the county schools in our jurisdiction. The county has proposed a one year 
contract which will pay the officers salary and benefits ($76,025.69) and the Town of Winterville is 
responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training. This officer will primarily be assigned to 
A.G. Cox Middle School but will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary as well as Creekside Elementary 
as needed or prudent. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town to reimburse the 
salary and benefits cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the county, this contract is renewed annually 
to address changes in salary or details. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 2022-
2023 SRO contract with Pitt County Schools. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
9. Additional SRO positions with Pitt County Schools. 
 
The Police Department is requesting approval to staff two new SRO positions approved by the Pitt 
County Commissioners during their Monday, June 6 meeting. 
 
Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into two (2) additional SRO 
contracts for W.H. Robinson Elementary and Creekside Elementary schools. During the June 6th board 
meeting, the County Commissioners voted to fund an SRO for every school in Pitt County. These are 
not grant funded positions. The Police Department would like and requests that these positions be 
Winterville Police officers. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town to reimburse the 
salary and benefits cost for these added SROs. As with other SRO’s throughout the county, this 
contract is renewed annually to address changes in salary or benefits details. 
 
The department’s current budget will absorb personal equipment, uniforms and training costs however, 
two additional vehicles and upfit will be required at a cost of $84,000 and was not in the proposed 
budget for 2022-23. 
 
Police Chief Willhite noted that this is good for the Town even though there is an additional cost. 
Councilman Moye noted that the Officer will be from the Town. Town Manager Parker said this is 
positive for the Town. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
additional SRO positions with Pitt County Schools. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
  

36 of 65



 

Page 25 of 26 

10. Rivers and Associates – 2019 Sanitary Sewer Project - Change Order Amendment No. 3. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted that the third change order for three items that impacted the 2019 Sanitary 
Sewer Project. The amount of the change order is $129,026.07. The reason for this amendment is to 
address the need for additional services performed by Rivers and Associates. The project took an 
additional 151 days beyond the original contract. This cost was $121,026. There was also an additional 
$8,000 needed for Grant and Loan administration. The additional cost will be included in the loan used 
to fund the project and will be paid back over the 20 year term. We will amend the Capital Project 
Ordinance to reflect this change order. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the Rivers 
and Associates 2019 Sanitary Sewer Project Change Order Amendment No. 3. Motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 
1. Kids Carnival Game Day and Market: Thursday, June 16, 2022; 4:00 pm – 7:00 pm – Market on the 

Square. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, June 20, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, June 21, 2022 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
4. Recreation Advisory Board-cancelled: Tuesday, June 28, 2022 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 
5. July 4th Holiday: Monday July 4, 2022 - Town Offices Closed. 
6. Happy Birthday USA Cookout and Market: Thursday, July 7, 2022; 4:00 pm – 7:00 pm – Market on 

the Square. 
7. Regular Town Council Meeting Cancelled: Monday, July 11, 2022 @ 7:00 pm. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
Finance Director Manning noted that the Audit Report questionnaire needs to be submitted. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: No report. Sent email to Council for your review. 
 
Councilman Moore: Blessed. 
 
Councilman Rice: We are fortunate. 
 
Councilman Moye: Asked Mr. Preston Coghill about the “An Evening of Gospel.” 
 
Manager Parker: Good. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith: None 
 
  

37 of 65



 

Page 26 of 26 

ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:16 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 1st day of August 2022. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

38 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: The Town of Winterville Code of Ordinance section 96.04 requires person(s) wishing to engage in 
activities regulated by this ordinance to acquire a specific permit approved by the Chief of Police, or his 
designee. A permit granted under this section requires an administration fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00). The 
Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee is requesting exemption from this fee. 
Action Requested: Approve. 
Attachment: Parade Route. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/11/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/20/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The code of ordinance requires all organizations that wish to hold a parade submit information describing the 
route, responsible persons and their contact numbers. The Town Council must approve the issuance of the 
permit based on this and any other information they request. The Winterville Watermelon Festival committee 
is expected to submit a parade application in the immediate future to the Chief of Police. The Organization’s 
Chairperson is Heather Jackson. The parade contact person is Rebecca Caveness. The date of the parade 
is August 27th, 2022 at 10am. The lineup will begin at 9:00am and will end at approximately 11:00am. The 
parade route is attached. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 
 

39 of 65



40 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee to Limit the use of the 
Parking lot at the Winterville Recreation Park and Request a Change in Traffic Patterns from August 25th-
28th, 2022 in support of the 2022 Watermelon Festival 
Action Requested: Approve. 
Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/11/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/20/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee request that the parking lot located at the Winterville 
Recreation Park be utilized for parking during the festival for the following: 
 Handicapped, VIP, Employee, Bands, Vendors, Emergency Services, and other Festival staff. 
Additionally, the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee and the Chief of Police request a change in the 
following traffic patterns to help ensure public safety: 
 
Sylvania Street- West bound vehicular traffic only from Ange Street to Church Street, and East bound 
pedestrian traffic only from Church Street to Ange Street. 
 Friday, August 26th 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
 Saturday, August 27th 3:00pm until 12:00am. 
 
Division Street- From Church Street to Park entrance.  
 Closed Thursday, August 25th at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
 Closed Friday, August 26th at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
 Closed Saturday, August 27th at 8:00am until 12:00am. 
 
Barrel Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 
 No parking on south side of street during festival hours.  
 No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 
 
Windmill Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 
 No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 
 
Gregory Lane- No parking in this cul-de-sac on street during festival hours.  
 
No parking on west side of Ange street from Blount street to Sylvania street. 
 
* Note: Access to private residences on closed streets available by permits. 

To promote optimum traffic flow and public safety, changes to the Watermelon Festival Committee’s request 
may be altered to accommodate Festival requirements. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 
 

41 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Approval of Request from the Watermelon Festival Committee to Suspend the Winterville Park 
Hours Limitation for August 25th-28th, 2022. 
Action Requested: Approve. 
Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/11/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/20/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The Town of Winterville’s policy states that the Winterville Recreation Park may not be used after the hours 
of 10:30pm. The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee requests that his policy be suspended for the 
2022 Winterville Watermelon Festival to be held August 25th-28th, 2022. 

Budgetary Impact: None.. 

Recommendation: Approval. 
 

42 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for the Placement of 
Signs and Banners on Town Property and Public Right-of-Ways. 
Action Requested: Approve. 
Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/11/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee request approval for the placement of signs and Banners on 
town property and along public right-of-way announcing the location and times for the upcoming 2022 
Watermelon Festival. The signs will begin being erected on or about August 8th, 2022. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 
 

43 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for use of Parks and Recreation 
Bathroom facilities from August 25, 2022 through August 28, 2022. 
Action Requested: Approve. 
Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 7/20/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee has requested the use of all bathrooms, two (2) men’s and 
two (2) women’s, at the Winterville Recreation Park during the Watermelon Festival. The scheduled request 
is as follows: 

8/25/2021 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/26/2021 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/27/2021 – 8 am to 11 pm 

The Festival Committee will provide all paper products and they will hire and provide janitorial services to 
keep the bathrooms clean during these times. 

Recreation Staff has discussed this issue with the Watermelon Festival Committee. Staff requests approval 
of the Committee’s Request. 

Budgetary Impact: Cost of water and electricity used during the Festival Period. 

Recommendation: Approve. 
 

44 of 65



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Asst. Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Budget Amendment 2022-2023 
Action Requested: Approval of the Amendment 
Attachment: N/A 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Asst. Town Manager Date: 7/20/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: __________________ ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: 7/29/2022

Supporting Documentation 
This is the first budget amendment for the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses the annual roll of open Purchase Orders from the prior year.  Our process 
carries over only necessary open PO’s into the next fiscal year.  Once we have adopted the annual budget, 
we then bring forward the items that were started in the prior year.   

The total across all funds is $2,609,943 

General: $612,488 

Recreation: $184,653 

Electric: $1,597,188 

Water: $48,041 

Sewer: $140,648 

Storm Water:  $26,896 
Items that are not part of the Open PO amount are funds for Recreation Building $120,000, Admin Vehicle 
Purchase $8,000, and $85,500 for 2 new Police Vehicles associated with the two new school resource 
officers. 

Budgetary Impact: As denoted above. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the amendment 

45 of 65



BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 22-23-1
.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 
be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023:

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Account Increase Decrease

Fund Balance 10 3831 612,517  

Fund Balance 15 3831 184,653  

Fund Balance 60 3831 1,597,188 

Fund Balance 61 3831 48,041  

Fund Balance 62 3831 140,648  

Connection Fees 63 3831 26,896  

Total 2,609,943               ‐$  

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

PROFESSION DEVELOP‐EDUCAT 10‐4110‐00‐4221 Town Council General  1,560  

TRAVEL‐MEALS,LODGING,MILE 10‐4110‐00‐4222 Town Council General  2,654  

TRAVEL‐MEALS,LODGING,MILE 10‐4120‐00‐4222 Administration General  531  

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 10‐4120‐00‐4234 Administration General  1,030  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4120‐00‐7150 Administration General  21,067  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4120‐01‐7150 Administration General  129,910  

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 10‐4120‐02‐4230 Administration General  1,016  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 10‐4120‐02‐4233 Administration General  3,400  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4120‐02‐7150 Administration General  29,112  

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 10‐4120‐03‐4230 Administration General  2,988  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 10‐4120‐04‐4233 Administration General  104,389  

SMALL EQUIPMENT 10‐4120‐04‐4267 Administration General  2,500  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 10‐4260‐00‐4233 Public Buildings General  2,795  

MAINT & REPAIR‐FACILITY 10‐4260‐00‐4239 Public Buildings General  19,827  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4260‐00‐7150 Public Buildings General  39,649  

PROFESSION DEVELOP‐EDUCAT 10‐4310‐00‐4221 Police General  768  

MAINT & REPAIR‐VEHICLE 10‐4310‐00‐4226 Police General  12,298  

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 10‐4310‐00‐4230 Police General  756  

UNIFORMS & SHOES 10‐4310‐00‐4231 Police General  503  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 10‐4310‐00‐4233 Police General  742  

FUEL (VEHICLES) 10‐4320‐00‐4227 Fire General  283  

NEW EQUIPMENT 10‐4320‐00‐4274 Fire General  14,883  

DISPOSABLE SUPPLIES AND M 10‐4320‐00‐4295 Fire General  1,218  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4320‐00‐7150 Fire General  40,966  

FUEL (VEHICLES) 10‐4510‐02‐4227 Public Works ‐ Other General  283  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 10‐4510‐02‐7150 Public Works ‐ Other General  56,687  

POSTAGE & TELEPHONE 10‐9500‐00‐4223 Non Departmental General  18,948  

COMMUNITYEXPENSE 10‐9500‐00‐5111 Non Departmental General  6,699  

TOWN CODE CODIFICATION 10‐9500‐00‐5113 Non Departmental General  760  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 10‐9500‐00‐5135 Non Departmental General  795  

MAINT & REPAIR‐EQUIPMENT 15‐6010‐00‐4225 Recreation 1,341  

MAINT & REPAIR‐FACILITY 15‐6010‐00‐4239 Recreation 9,450  

FOOTBALL 15‐6010‐00‐4280 Recreation 6,242  

CONCESSION EXP 15‐6010‐00‐4283 Recreation 5,121  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 15‐6010‐00‐7150 Recreation 32,500  

TRAVEL‐MEALS,LODGING,MILE 60‐7110‐00‐4222 Electric 1,539  

MAINT & REPAIR‐EQUIPMENT 60‐7110‐00‐4225 Electric 158  

FUEL (VEHICLES) 60‐7110‐00‐4227 Electric 283  

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 60‐7110‐00‐4230 Electric 34,324  

ENGINEERING 60‐7110‐00‐4232 Electric 172,252  

DEPARTMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS 60‐7110‐00‐4260 Electric 5,100  

NEW EQUIPMENT 60‐7110‐22‐4274 Electric 37,500  

WATER REPLACEMENT METERS 60‐7110‐22‐4306 Electric 54,432  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 60‐8010‐00‐7150 Electric 1,291,600 

PROFESSION DEVELOP‐EDUCAT 61‐7210‐00‐4221 Water 705  

FUEL (VEHICLES) 61‐7210‐00‐4227 Water 283  

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 61‐7210‐00‐4230 Water 674  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 61‐8010‐00‐7150 Water 46,378  

FUEL (VEHICLES) 62‐7310‐21‐4227 Sewer 283  

MAINT & REPAIR‐EQUIPMENT 62‐7320‐20‐4225 Sewer 26,060  

ENGINEERING 62‐7320‐20‐4232 Sewer 5,862  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 62‐7320‐20‐4233 Sewer 24,137  

CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNT 62‐8010‐00‐7150 Sewer 84,305  

CONTRACTED SERVICES 63‐7420‐00‐4233 Storm Water 26,896  

Capital Outlay 10‐4120‐00‐4222 General  8,000 

Capital Outlay 15‐6010‐00‐7150 Recreation 130,000 

Capital Outlay 10‐4310‐00‐4221 General  85,500 

Total

Adopted the 1st day of August 2022. 2,609,943               ‐ 

Mayor

Town Clerk

46 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Old Business 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Cemetery Update: Summary of activities, schedule, new regulations, and etc. 
Action Requested: Council Direction. 
Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 6/1/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
As the Town moves toward with the Cemetery Expansion project, it is time for Council to look at current 
regulations to make sure we are where we want to be moving forward. Council moved this item to Tonight’s 
Agenda to give time to review current regulations which have been provided to Council twice before. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Council Direction. 
 

47 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: New Business 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Ange Street Sidewalk Project. 
Action Requested: Receive Report. 
Attachment: Map. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/20/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
We were recently contacted by The Wooten Company who is engineering the project to notify us that the 
project had to be modified from our original plan. The original plan called for curb and gutter to be installed 
on the west side of Ange Street on the AG Cox property. The sidewalk was to be constructed over the tile 
that was to be installed adjacent to the Rd. Once The Wooten Company evaluated the elevations, they 
determined that this would cause a water sheeting problem that would allow water to flow from the AG Cox 
Softball field to the Street and may cause flooding in the area. 

The solution is to keep a small swell and reconfigure the drainage system so that it is much more shallow 
and easier to maintain and traversable for pedestrians. The sidewalk will now be moved closer to the softball 
field. The cost of this project will be significantly reduced from the estimated $137,900 to $85,000 and will 
provide the same benefit to pedestrians and will keep the water flowing from in a North to South. 

Budgetary Impact: This is covered by our annually adopted budget.. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the contract 
 

48 of 65



R

/

W

R

/

W

R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/
W

R/W
R/WR/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R

/
W

R/WR/WR/W
R/WR/W

R/W

R

/
W

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

S

S

S

S

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

F
M

F
M

F

M

F

M

FM

W

L

W

L

B
A

R
R

E
L

 
D

R
.

P
U

B
L

I
C

 
R

I
G

H

T
-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

3
0
'
 
F

R
O

M

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
O

F
 
R

O
A

D

Asph. Drive

5' Chain Fence

U
P

2
-
G

u
y

U
P

F
H

5

'

 

C

h

a

i

n

 

F

e

n

c

e

2
-
G

u
y

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

B
o

l
l
a
r
d

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

U
P

U
P

2
-
G

u
y

2
-
G

u
y

F
H

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

2
-
S

i
g

n

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

2
-
W

V

B
l
d

g

B
o

l
l
a
r
d

2
-
B

o
l
l
a
r
d

W
V

S
S

M
H

18" RCP

Inv. 69.34'

18" RCP

Inv. 68.85'

15" RCP

Inv. 70.20'

15" RCP

Inv. 69.86'

C
o

n
c
.
 
D

r
i
v

e

W
/
1
5
"
 
R

C
P

15" RCP

Inv. 69.05'

C
o

n
c
.
 
D

r
i
v

e

W
/
1
5
"
 
R

C
P

S
i
g

n

G
u

y

2
-
G

u
y

P
U

M
P

S
T

A
T

I
O

N

5

'
 
C

h

a

i
n

 
F

e

n

c

e

W
V

15" RCP

Inv. 68.06'

S
i
g

n

S
i
g

n

4' Vinyl Fence

E

.

 

B

L

O

U

N

T

 

S

T

.

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

3

0

'

 

F

R

O

M

 

C

E

N

T

E

R

 

O

F

 

R

O

A

D

15" RCP

Inv. 69.21'

CP

N  649.166.40'

E  2,476.855.36'

Elev.  71.04'

LOD

LOD
LOD

LOD
LODLOD

LOD

LOD

LOD
LOD

LOD LOD
LOD LOD LOD LOD

LOD LOD LOD

N

A

D

 

8

3

 

(

2

0

1

1

)

8' +/- OFF EOP

NEW 5' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

(2,629 SF)

NEW 250 LF OF SWALE

WITH 4:1 SLOPE ON THE

SIDES

5'

NEW HANDICAP RAMP

W/ DETECTABLE

WARNING DOMES

ANGE ST. - SR 1720

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

30' FROM CENTER OF ROAD

15" RCP

Inv. 68.49'

F

e

n

c

e

F
e
n

c
e

F

e

n

c

e

S

Y

L

V

A

N

I

A

 

 

S

T

.

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

3

0

'
 

F

R

O

M

 

C

E

N

T

E

R

 

O

F

 

R

O

A

D

13' +/- OFF EOP

NEW 15" FLARED END SECTION

INV.: 69.0'

71.0

71.0

71.5

71.0

71.5

71.0

71.0

NEW APPROXIMATELY 80 LF

OF 15" RCP AT 1.89% SEE

NOTES 4 & 5

NEW DROP INLET

RIM 70.30'

INV. 68.49'

6'

12'

9'

NEW HANDICAP RAMP

W/ DETECTABLE

WARNING DOMES

A

A

NEW 12 LF OF 15" RCP

INV.: 69.5'

NEW HANDICAP RAMP

W/ DETECTABLE

WARNING DOMES

12'

1
2
.
6
'

10'

6'

1

2

'

F
e
n

c
e

Ex. Grade

5'

C/L

A
N

G
E

 
S

T
.
 
-
 
S

R
 
1

7
2

0

Asphalt Pavement

E
O

P

E
x

. 
G

r
a
d

e

4:1

4:1

NEW CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

R
/
W

C-2.02

N
EW

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN

SCALE: 1"=20'

0 10' 20' 40'

0 11/2

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT
MEASURE 1" THEN DRAWING

IS NOT TO FULL SCALE

WAL

DRS

WAL

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT  NO.:

CHECKED  BY:

DRAWN  BY:

DESIGNED  BY:

2853-AV

JUNE 2022

PI
TT

 C
O

UN
TY

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

IN
TE

RV
IL

LE

AN
G

E 
ST

RE
ET

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

N
O

RT
H

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

FI
N

AL
 D

RA
W

IN
G

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

\\
tw

c-
gr

ee
nv

ill
e\

M
ai

n_
D

ire
ct

or
y\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\W
in

te
rv

ill
e-

28
53

\A
V-

An
ge

St
Si

de
w

al
ks

_T
O

35
\_

CA
D

D
\D

ra
w

in
gS

et
s\

Sh
ee

ts
_2

85
3-

AV
_P

la
ns

 S
et

.d
w

g 
  D

SC
AR

G
LE

   
7/

14
/2

02
2 

11
:2

0 
AM

AS NOTED

3
0
1
 
W

e
s
t
 
1
4
t
h
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
·
 
G

r
e
e
n
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
8
3
4

(
2
5
2
)
 
7
5
7
-
1
0
9
6
 
·
 
t
h
e
w

o
o
t
e
n
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
.
c
o
m

L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N

u
m

b
e
r
 
:
 
F

-
0
1
1
5

NEW SITE PLAN
SCALE 1" = 20'

1
C-2.02

NOTES:

1. THE TOPSOIL IN THE DITCH SHOULD BE REMOVED

BEFORE THE CONTRACTOR DOES THE GRADING

AND FILLING OF THE DITCH

2. DITCH TO BE FILLED AND COMPACTED TO 95%

STANDARD PROCTOR.

3. DITCH WILL BE 8' WIDE FROM TOP OF BANK TO

TOP OF BANK NEAR THE PIPE INVERT.  THE DITCH

ELEVATION AT THE DOWNSTREAM SIDE SHOULD

MATCH THE INVERT OF FLARED END SECTION TO

AVOID EROSION OF SOIL.

4. FILL ABOVE NEW 15" RCP SHALL BE GRADED TO

PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO THE NEW DROP

INLET.

5. PROPOSED 15" RCP SHALL UTILIZE BEDDING

CLASS IV.

6. ALL TEMPORARY REMOVED SIGN TO BE

PERMANENTLY LOCATED.

SECTION A-A
NTS

2
C-2.02

07
 /

 1
2 

/ 
20

22
RE

VI
SE

D
 P

ER
 N

CD
O

T 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

1

1 1

1

2

RE
VI

SE
D

 P
ER

 N
CD

O
T 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2

07
 /

 1
3 

/ 
20

22

49 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: New Business 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Contract amendment for Rivers and Associates 2019 Sewer Rehab Project – Amendment #4. 
Action Requested: Approve the contract amendment. 
Attachment: Contract Amendment. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/25/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
This is the final amendment for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. This amendment addresses 
the additional cost of Rivers assisting with negotiating and settling the close out of the project. This increase 
is in the amount of $22,862.84 for additional work related to Construction Admin and Observation. 

Approving the amendment will allow the Town to get reimbursed by NCDEQ who is providing the funding for 
the project. 

Budgetary Impact: This does not affect the budget of the project as the project came in under budget. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract Amendment. 
 

50 of 65



51 of 65



52 of 65



53 of 65



54 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: Old Business 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Contract Amendment #2 for Rivers and Associates – 2020 Pump Station Rehab Project. 
Action Requested: Approve the contract amendment. 
Attachment: Contract Amendment. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/25/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
This is the second amendment for the 2020 Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. This amendment addresses 
the additional cost of Rivers and Associates assisting with obtaining funding, design, and construction admin 
of increasing the capacity of the Church Street Lift Station. The cost of the amendment is $280,300. This 
station is the target for much of the Town’s growth area. As it stands now, the Town must begin increasing 
the capacity of this portion of the system in order to accommodate the growth that is occurring in the area. 
The project includes increasing the capacity at the wet well and increasing the size of the force main from an 
8” line to a 12” line that will tie into the CMSD system. 

By including this amendment with the original project, the Town will save an estimated $180,000 in 
engineering fees. This project is funded by NCDWQ and is has an interest free loan with a 20-year term. 
There is also $500,000 in debt forgiveness (Grant). 

The original part of this project is to relocate the Chapman Street lift station and construct a new outfall canal 
that will take flow to the CMDS facility on Ready Branch Road. 

Preliminary estimates for the Church Street portion of the project are $2,395,100. The original budget for the 
Chapman Street project was $2,013,700. The combined total will be $4,408,800. The estimated debt service 
payment will be $195,440. 

The total cost per customer will be $ 4.55 per month to $5.00 per month. 

Please note that all of these numbers are estimates and are not based on bids. We have not received any 
bids at this point. 

Budgetary Impact: The Capital Project Budget will need to be amended to include the new improvement 
cost of $2,395,100. The engineering contract will need to be increased in the amount of $280,300. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract Amendment. 
 

55 of 65



56 of 65



57 of 65



58 of 65



59 of 65



60 of 65



61 of 65



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Amendment to the Designs Standard and Specifications Manual that allow for changes to be 
implemented by Town Administrators. 
Action Requested: Approval of the Amendment to the Design Standard and Specification Manual. 
Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/20/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 7/25/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022

Supporting Documentation 
The Town updated and approved our Design Standard and Specification Manual in January 2021. This 
manual provides guidance to the Town staff as subdivisions are developed in the Town. This Design 
Standard and Specification Manual sets standards that the developers must adhere to when they are 
constructing new subdivisions. 
This change would allow staff to make improvements to the manual in a much quicker manner. 

Amendment: 

1.02 Organizations, Authority, and Responsibilities 
A. Town of Winterville

6. The Administrative staff for the Town has the authority to make necessary changes that will allow
for Design Standard Manual to be implemented without the approval of the Town Council. All changes must 
be documented and added to Record of Revision that follows the table of contents. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the amendment. 

62 of 65



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 
Item Section: New Business 
 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2022 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Vehicle Lease Resolution. 
Action Requested: Approve Resolution. 
Attachment: Resolution 22-R-081. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 7/26/2022 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☒ TC: 7/26/2022 ☒ TM: 7/29/2022 ☒ Final: tlp - 7/29/2022 

Supporting Documentation 
The Winterville Police Department leases a car from Greenville Toyota every year for investigative purposes. 
This year, Greenville Toyota requires a Resolution ensuring that the Governing Board is aware of said lease 
and approves such. 

 

Budgetary Impact: Amount for Said Lease is Already included in the FY 2022-2023 Approved Budget. 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 22-R-081. 
 

63 of 65



RESOLUTION 

VEHICLE LEASE – WINTERVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
ENTITY RESOLUTION AND  

SECRETARY CERTIFICATION 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes authorize a governmental unit in this State to 
lease motor vehicles when it is determined to be in the best interest of the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville has determined that it is in the best of the Winterville Police 
Department and the Town of Winterville to lease a vehicle from Greenville Toyota for police 
investigative purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Jessica Manning, Finance Director whose name 
and signature appear below is hereby authorized, directed and empowered for and on behalf of the 
Town of Winterville and the Winterville Police Department and in its name to execute a retail motor 
vehicle installment sales contract, closed end motor vehicle lease agreement, or open end motor 
vehicle lease agreement (“Contract’) with Greenville Toyota (“Dealer”) on such terms as may be agreed 
to by said person. Said Dealer and any subsequent holder of the Contract are authorized to act upon 
this Resolution until written notice of its revocation is delivered to said Dealer or any such subsequent 
holder of the Contract. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Council for the Town of Winterville hereby 
approves said retail motor vehicle installment sales contract, closed end motor vehicle lease 
agreement, or open-end motor vehicle lease agreement (“Contract’) with Greenville Toyota (“Dealer”). 

__________________________________________________ 
Jessica Manning 
Finance Director 

Adopted this the 1st day of August 2022. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

64 of 65



 
CERTIFICATION BY TOWN CLERK 
 
I, Donald Harvey, the undersigned duly qualified Town Clerk of the Town of Winterville does hereby 
certify: That the above/attached Resolution is a true and correct copy of the Resolution authorizing the 
execution of a retail motor vehicle installment sales contract, closed end motor vehicle lease 
agreement, or open end motor vehicle lease agreement (“Contract’) with Greenville Toyota (“Dealer”). I 
further certify that said Resolution was adopted by a legal majority of the Town Council for the Town of 
Winterville at a legally convened meeting of the Town Council duly held on the 1st day of August 2022. 
Finally, I further certify that the signature of Jessica Manning, Finance Director for the Town of 
Winterville appearing above, is the genuine signature of the person mentioned in said Resolution and 
authorized to act on behalf of the Town of Winterville and the Winterville Police Department as set forth 
in said Resolution; and that such Resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and 
records in my office and has not been amended or revoked and remains in full force and effect.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 1st day of August 2022. 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

65 of 65


	11_02b_Sheets_2853-AV_Plans Set_C-2.02.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-2.02 New Site Plan





